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We shall carve a place for ourselves at the highest level of the leasing
industry by providing quality service and ensuring customer satisfaction.
We will go an extra mile to ensure greater profitability and value for our
shareholders.

' Our .
Professional Management will be the hallmark of our organization. We
will operate with state of the art technology to achieve optimum results

and develop an efficient and motivated work force with corporate pride in
their company.

Our
resolve

We will provide our customers modern and technology based leasing
services while we ensure our shareholders security and a high rate of
return on their investments.

Our "
commitments

We will maintain financial discipline and adhere to professional and
moral codes. In the operation of the company, we will comply with
all rules and regulations set down by the supervisory authorities,
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Company

Information

Mohsin Tayehaly & Co,

Board of direclors

br. Asif All Rashid
Mr. Muhammad Masim Khan

Chairman
Chief Executive & Managing Director

Mr. Shahzad Ali Rashid

Director

Ommitiee Mr. Aamir Ali Rashid | Chairman
M. Asif Ali Rashid Member
Mr. Ruhail Mohammad Mernbwer
Allied Bank Ltd. Mational Bank of Pakistan
Askari Bank Ltd. | NIB Bank Ltd.
Bank Alfalah Ltd. Silk Bank Ltd.
Faysal Bank Lid. Soneri Bank Lid,
Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd, | United Bank Ltd.,
KASB Bank L,

Sigma House 8-C, Block 6, PECHS,

Off. Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi - 75400, Pakistan.

Tel: (021) 34557233-4, 34544850-1 Fax: (027) 34544439

Email: info@sigma-leasing.com, Website: www.sigma-leasing.com

Mr. Aamir Ali Rashid Director
Mr. Iskander Sultan Khawaja Director
Mr. Ruhail Mohammad Director
Mr. 5. Arshad A. Kazmi Director
Mr. Shujat Ali Baig Director
Mr. Arshadullah Khan Director
Mr. Shoaib Jawed Savul Director

Company secrefary &

gl e gt
Chiet inancial officer

Mr. Arfan Ali Rashid

Lahore @ Rex Market, 6 - Allama Igbal Road.
Tel: (042) 36306798, 36365975, Fax: (042) 36365343

Faisalabad:  Plot # 63/1-C, Model Town-B, Jail Road.
Tel: (041) 2636830-31, Fax: (D41) 2644961

Sialket : U i Road, Near Zohra Hospital Chowlk, Shabpura.
Tel: (0432) 3552919, 3554429, Fax: (0432) 3552919

oLnZodujenuue

Auditors

s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,

Chartered Accountants

By JCR VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (effective December 18, 2009)
Long Term Entity Rating *A-" (Single A minus)

Short Term Entity Rating "A2"

Outlook Stable

MNoble Computer Services (Private) Limited

Mezzanine Floor, House of Habib Building (Siddigsons Tower),
3-Jinnah Co-operative Housing Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.
Tel: (92-21) 34325482-7 Fax: (92-21) 34325442
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. Profile

gma Leasing

Corporation Limited

Sigma introduces itself as a professional and progressive leasing company operating in Pakistan now for
maore than fourteen years. It was incorporated in 1996 under Companies Ordinance 1984 and commenced
its business on January 27, 1997,

The basic objective of Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited is to provide full payout financial leases against
plant and machinery, office equipment and vehicles. However, along with providing this facility, Sigma also
intends to embark on other services, which include operating lease, consumer lease finance and micro
leasing. Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited is committed to develop a strong industrial base through its
lease products and has concentrated in capital-intensive industries and endeavored to cater to needs
ranging across the cross section of the economy. Another objective would be a deviation from the usual
market segment of large corporate clients and exploration of new markets in the small and medium sectors
comprising of industrial and commercial enterprises. However, only sound and credit worthy customers
would be offered leasing facilities,

Our broader objective is to make Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited a known professional leasing
company providing assistance to the industrial and commercial sector of Pakistan, Efforts are being made to
establish the Company as one of the top ranking companies in the leasing sector. Sigma will participate in
facilitating the lessee by providing cash flow benefits, an alternate source of funding, time efficiency, and
above all tax efficiency.

Sigma actively seeks to play a positive and constructive role in expanding the capital and funds markets in
Pakistan and actively invites funding both from private sources and multinational agencies with the
objective of expanding the fund base available for Pakistan's industrial and economic growth. It will particu-
larly assist the private sector in Pakistan to meet its medium term capital needs for expansion and balancing,
modernizing, and replacement (BMR).
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Our

$pPONSOIs

Our company has been sponsored by a well known business group of the country, whose flagship company,
Almurtaza Machinery Company (Private) Limited, has the leadership with a command over major share of
the apparel machinery market of Pakistan. They have equipped the garment industry with the latest machin-
ery, equipment, and accessories, imported from leading manufacturers all over the world.

Almurtaza

® Represents more than 39 leading apparel machinery manufacturers from all over the world.

= Maintained an excellent track record of marketing some of the most modern and technologically advanced
apparel machinery in the country.

5 |s led by the team of professionals, who have extended and are committed to continue extending crucial
support to those intending to start a new apparel production unil or planning o update an existing factory.

® Consistent planning, professionalism, and proactive approach have led Almurtaza to unprecedented growth
& impressive results.

Almurtaza represents the best names in business, including:

Doory Industry
Eastman

Grand

Hashima

Inderle

ldrosmack

Juki

Kansai Special
Miller Weld Master
MNaomoto

Ngai Shing

Mara Sewing Machines
Mapel & Hermann
Pegasus

Perfecta Schmid
Seungmin

Seit

Smart Mrt .
Stefanelli Machines
Titan Baratto Comely
Tsp

Tresure

Embroidery Division

Master
Seit
Tajima

Apparcl Division e ivson

Cintex

Conti Complett
Da Kong
Fukuhara
Lectra

Mei

Pannon

Saf Cuard
Shima Seiki

Spare Parts & Accessories

Dijw
Koban
Cirgan
Racing
Tsp

Home Textile Division

Eisenkolb

Hauser

Meca

Rimac

Svegea

Titan Baratio Cornely

Other venture and affiliated company of the group in Pakistan is Alrashid Microcomputers
(Private) Limited, a company, established in 1981. It has been for the last two decades,
leading the microcomputer market in Pakistan with reputation of introducing new products

with full backup and support.

olLoTpodaenuue

e
& i1

e

Sigma

I!_'m'Prnlm
Lirnited




patron

anfualrepor 2010 ,._WH _wm..m,m.m

DLogHodenuUe mﬂwmm|



board of

directors
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Iskander Sultan Khawaja
S. Arshad A. Kazmi
Shahzad Ali Rashid

Aamir Ali Rashid

Asif Ali Rashid
Muhammad Nasim Khan
Ruhail Mohammad
Shujat Ali Baig

Shoaib Jawed Savul
Arshadullah Khan
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Mr. Asif Ali Rashid
Chairman

M. Asif Ali Rashid (FCA) is fellow member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, a former member of the Karachi
Stock Exchange, & a prominent businessman
of Karachi. His experience of auditing of
leading commercial banks of Pakistan during
his association with M/s A, F Ferguson &
Company - Chartered Accountants has
endowed Mr. Asif with an astute & detailed
knowledge of the financial sector. His special
acumen on financial products & command of
financial management & his entrepreneurial
skills are additional qualifications which have
been instrumental in the business success of
the group. He is also an executive committee
member of Pak - Japan Business Forum.

Mr. Aamir Ali Rashid
Director

Mr. Aamir Ali Rashid is an MBA in Finance
and Marketing from the Institute of Business
Administration, Karachi; where he acclaimed
gold medal in Finance, gold medal in Treasury
Funds Management with 97%, 2nd position in
MBA and 1st prize for highest profit in Stock
Exchange Learning Fund (SELF). Served in
American Express Bank, Karachi for two years
as Assistant Manager, Corporate Banking and
Money Market Dealer. In January 2000, he
established his own IT business for E-Business
solution as Chief Executive Officer of
Immaculate Solutions. Since August 2002, he
is alsa the Director of Almurtaza Machinery
Company (Private) Limited.

Mr. Muhammad Nasim Khan
CEO & MD

Mr. Muhammad Nasim Khan is a banker
by profession. He did his Masters in
Economics in 1959. He has over thirty six
years of banking experience with a number
of Pakistani and multinational banks, both
in Pakistan and abroad. Starting his banking
career as an officer in 1962, he has worked
as Manager, Zonal Chief, Head of
Operations, Country Manager, Director
General Adjoint and Member Board during
the course of his banking career. In 1995,
he left a local bank, where he was one of
the founder members of the bank and was
working as Regional General Manager with
the rank of Senior Executive Vice President,
to join Sigma as its Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Ruhail Mohammad
Director

Mr. Ruhail Mohammad holds an MBA
degree in Finance from the Institute of
Business Administration, Karachi and is also a
qualified Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA).
He has worked for eighteen years in various
senior positions in Pakistan, the UAE and
Europe. He has also been a wvisiting faculty
member for Finance at the Institute of Business
Administration, Karachi. He served as Chief
Financial Officer in Engro Asahi Polymer and
Chemicals Limited and currently the Chief
Financial Officer and the Director of Engro
Corporation Limited. He is also the Director of
Engro Management Services (Pvt) Limited,
Engro Innovative Autornation (Pvt.) Limnited
and Engro Foods (Pvt.) Limited.

Mr. Iskander Sultan Khawaja
Director

Mr. Iskander Sultan Khawaja
belongs to well established business
family of Peshawar. He started his
career with family business in
Pakistan and mowved to UAE in
1980. Since then, he has
established a firm business base
with its head office located in
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates. He
is presently Managing Director of
Al-Borj  Garments  Machinery
Trading Company Ltd, UAE, with
branches in Jordan and Kenya,
Al-Zarooni  Al-Khwaja Company
Ltd, UAE, Rigid Metals Lid, UAE,
Global Metals, Bahrain and KM
Trading Inc., Canada.

Mr. Shujat Ali Baig
Directar

Mr. Shujat Ali Baig is a banker by
profession and is serving as
Executive Vice President in Habib
Bank Limited. He has vast
experience of banking and public
relations, He started his career with
Habib Bank Limited and has served
on different executive and senior
executive positions. In addition, he
has contributed his several years
with sports, cultural and public
relation societies and associations.
He had been member of various
sports associations and public
relation societies. He is also the
pioneer of Kids University in
Pakistan.

Mr. Shahzad Ali Rashid
Director

Mr. Shahzad Ali Rashid gradu-
ated as a Chemical Engineer from
Dawood College of Engineering
and Technology, Karachi, Pakistan.
He also holds a Masters degree in
Business Administration from the
Institute of Business Administration,
Karachi. He has over twenty three
years of business experience to his
credit. Presently he is the General
Manager and a Director of Alrashid
Microcomputers (Pvt.) Ltd. as well
as a Director of Almurtaza Machin-
ery Company (Pvt.) Limited.

Mr. Shoaib Jawed Savul

Director
Mr.  Shoaib  Jawed Savul  After

completing his academic qualification as
post-graduation in Applied Information
Technology from Toronto, Canada &
B.A. in Business Administration &
Marketing from Southeastern University
Washington D.C. L'SA, he has worked in
the money market, equity brokerage and
asset management with some of the
leading financial institutions in Pakistan
and Canada. He is Ex. Managing
Director of AMZ Asset Management Lid
(A division of AMZ Securities) & having
seven years of rich experience at his
credit with various investment banking
and private equity firms, His experience
has benefitted his group firms to take
advantage of establishing professional
and efficient banking arrangements.
Shoaib Savul is currently a director with
Abdul Aziz Savul & Co which is one of
the oldest shipping and logistic company
in Pakistan and Rototec (Pvt.) Lid which

has a rotogravure printing unit in Karachi,

Mr. 5. Arshad A. Kazmi
Director

Mr. 5. Arshad A. Kazmi is a Senior
Corporate  Executive of a
multinational chemical company in
Pakistan carryving an experience of
thirty four years at his credit, having
worked in different management
positions and currently serving as
Country Representative of Bayer
Chemicals / Lanxess. He is an
associate member of Pakistan
Institute of Management and
member in number of clubs and has
also served as President of Rotary
Club.

Mr. Arshadullah Khan
Director

Mr. Arshadullah Khan is a senior
banker and has over 30 years of
banking experience. Commencing
his career with United Bank Limited
in 1974 at officer level, he passed
through  different  management
levels in local and multinational
banks in Pakistan. He has extensive
experience  and knowledpe of
planning, budgeting, credits and
lease finance. He has also served as
the Chairman and Secretary of
the credit and management
committees. Lastly, he left Askari
Commercial Bank Limited as Chief
Manager with the designation of
Executive Vice President in 2006
before joining Sigma as Deputy
Managing Director.
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; From the desk of

“We will endure in providing our customers with quality services and ensure endowing
them with optimum potential advantages.”

= Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited has successfully completed Fourteen years of its

= operations and has grown gradually with positive results as can be noted from the
financial statements.

s | am once again defighted to note that our Company's strategy of sustained growth,

E through a very well conceived and efficiently implemented business plan, is right on
track. The Company’s current business plan owes its success to:

EIEITII

Lossing

-

Liminied

B A realistic, honest, and correct assessment of the affairs of the Company.

m A perfectly defined mission, vision, and statement of broad policy objectives, based on value creation
for shareholders.

® A renewed focus on high quality environment, good corporate governance, and high professional
efficiency.

B An operational policy geared towards enhanced profitability through a broad spectrum of services.

The right demarcation of the roles of the Board and the Executive Management has also in my opinion,
played a decisive role in making the business plan a resounding success. | am pleased to note that the
Company has managed to generate high levels of value creation and payouts,

From the best suited infrastructure, constantly re-engineered work processes to high professional
efficiency, consistent policies, technological advancement and customer focus - each one is a contributor
IO SLCoess,

The team that comes up with the perfect blend — The Recipe to Success!

It is my firm belief that, in the final analysis, a company is only as good as the people who run it through
the well defined and closely monitored policies of the Board of Directors and sincere and dedicated
management to steer the company and draw results in letter and spirit. It is on this very account that Sigma
stands tall as a Model NBFC,

Asif Ali Rashid
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On it’s

path to sticcess

Periormance Analysis

By the grace of Almighty Allah, we have completed fourteen years of our operations.
Alhamdulillah, Sigma has been proactive on adopting measures to monitor and
mitigate risks associated with the leasing business, We are managing our operations
efficiently and are rigorously following the best practices as observed in the industry.
We are committed to increase our profitability, improve our market share, enhance
our customer base, improve quality of our assets and instigate excellence in quality
of our services through technological advancement and by enhancing the human
resource asset quality.

We have been maintaining considerable growth in size of our balance sheet along with
maintaining high quality of assets, establishment of comprehensive funding strategy
and development of reliable funding straits, a sound capital base and high profitability.
The current industry scenario has seen a drastic decline not only in business but in all
areas of operations which resulted in huge provisioning and loss of profitability, Consid-
ering all hurdles, we have never compromised on the quality of the leases / assets at the
approval stage or subsequent monitoring which led us to marginal provisioning. Due to
lack of good avenues for investments, our balance sheet size has reduced to Rs.531.493
million, while lease portfolio has declined to Rs.334.493 million from Rs.979.471
million and Rs.640.222 million respectively. Risk evaluation procedures were enriched
and made more stringent to ensure anly qualifying cases are approved to keep the
credit risk at minimal.

Timely access to competitively priced funding is a key to success for any company in
leasing business as any discomforting squeeze on the spread between the lease pricing
and the cost of borrowing may effect cost-efficiency of disbursement. We have, over the
period, charted out a funding strategy, which is successfully coping up to resolve our
funding issues and has led us to better sources of funds. During the vear, less invest-
ments in lease brought us surplus cash flow, which we utilized in settling off all our
Certificate of Deposits and Term Finances, which helped us in reducing our financial
changes and improving profitability.
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We are maintaining a substantial capital base when compared with the size of our leasing exposure. We have already
raised our paid up capital to Rs,300 million and the equity currently stands at Rs.313.333 million, which is sufficient for

current requirement.

We believe that success of Sigma is, to a great extent, due to our talented and hard working employees. Our employees
with their dedication, knowledge and skills are responsible for realizing the vision of the Company.

We are consistent performers and we believe in steady growth. W are amongst the very few companies who have success-
fully managed their profitability. We believe that profitability is the expression of firm's franchise strength and has a direct
impact on company’s ability to acquire funds and attract capital.

Assets we may Lease at Sigma

Sigma will lease all the assets falling with in the definition of Fixed Assets {with the exception of land & building} and admis-
sible for depreciation under tax laws and insurable by the prime insurance companies in Pakistan,

Leasing arrangements offered by us are very flexible and can be designed for a three to five years period. Lease rentals can
also be structured in accordance with the cash flow requirements of our customers.

Eligibility of the Proposed Lessee

The proposed lessee should be one of the following:

B A quoted / unguoted public company B A private limited company
B A partnership firm B Association of persons

B Clubs B A government organization
B A proprietorship concern B An autonomous body

B A trust B An individual
Criterions

B The proposed lessee should have been in the business for at least last three years.
B The proposed lessee should have at least three years financial accounts.

®  The accounts must depict the true state of affairs and show a regular profit.

B The proposed lessee is willing to provide guarantees and / or securities.

®  Credit Information Bureau (CIB) report of the proposed lessee must not show any over dues or
defaults,

The management in special cases may relax any of the above identified requirements.

Credit Evaluation and Approval Process at Sigma

Once the proposed lessee fulfills our eligibility criteria, it has to provide the following documents for
evaluation. Application for leases, three years audited financial statements, company’s profile,
Memorandum and Articles of Association, directors / sponsors background / net worth, details of assets
proposed for lease, its contribution, if any, in generation of additional profits / cash flows. The lessee
should also provide other information that would give support to the evaluation process. The complete
approval / disapproval process normally takes 2-3 working days after receiving all the required
information / documents from the proposed client.

Disbursement

There are two types of leases offered, one is direct lease and the other is sale and lease back. Once the
proposal meets the approval; lessee is provided a set of documents to be signed. After the documents are
signed by the lessee, checked by our operation department, found perfect and supported by the ariginal
insurance policy along with the premium payment receipt, the amount of lease is disbursed to the client
in the case of sale and lease back and to the vendor / supplier in the case of direct lease. Tenure of lease
is normally three to five years under monthly or quarterly rentals, which are due in advance.

Transfer of Assets on maturity of the lease

On the successful completion of the lease tenure, the assets may be transferred in the name of the lessee
at residual value.
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communication

Directors’

report

On behalf of the Directors of Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited, | am pleased to present the 14th Annual Report together with the
Company’s audited Financial Statements for the year ended Jure 30, 2010,
Financial Highlights
Income from leasing operation 2,668,827
Provision for potential lease losses (4,612,571)
Lease Receivable - write off (16,052,093)
Profit on investment in securities 19,927.933
Provision for diminution in AFS investments (3,304,524)
Other Income HH6,334
Loss before taxation (486,004)
Provision for taxation
Current year B,228,830
- Prior year (3,688,237)
Deferred (11,762,970)
(7,222,377)
Profit for the year 6,736,283 %
Earning per share - basic & diluted 0.22 g
The six years financial highlights of the Company are appended herewith. g
Sim'n:
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Dividend

Your Company has a strong history for dividend payout but unfortunately due to the stock market losses in the
previous year we could not make any dividend payment.

Economic Review

The fiscal year 2009-10, which started with the continuation of the macro economic stabilization plan to tackle the
economic imbalances has shown a modest recovery. The economy remains weak and continued perennial
structural challenges of low productivity, high inflation, low savings and investments and continued reliance on
external borrowings. These are the factors indicating volatility and fragility of the recovery in the medium to long
term.

Money and Banking

SBP continued its review of Monetary Policy on regular basis during 2009-10 and reduced the discount rate by 100
bps in August 2009 and 50 bps in November 2009 to bring the policy rate to 12.5 percent. The policy rate in view
of rising trend of inflation and lack of response by fragile fiscal position to the Monetary Policy was maintained at
12.5 percent level. However, this rate has been increased to 13 percent on July 30, 2010 with little likelihood of
reduction in the near future,

Equity Market

The equity market is still under pressure and is not performing well to boost the indicators and raise the investors'
confidence. Investors are not getting confidence to have a longer view but playing on short goals. The economic
revival is the answer to all questions. Further, the exemption on capital gains tax has been withdrawn on holding
of less than one year.

Operations Review

During the year under review, the Company had to face with several other problems apart from the increasing risk
of default and provisioning thereof, difficulties in recoveries of lease rentals, non-availability of good avenues for
investments, vis.a.vis cost of funds, lowered speed of equity market recovery and uncertainty in economic revival.
Despite of all these problems the company managed to post a profit of Rs. 6,736,283/-

During the year, our lease dishbursements were Rs.47.823. Our balance sheet size is reduced by 45% mainly
because of less investments in lease and maturities, Our lease portfolio now stands at Rs.334.493 million as
compared to Rs.640.222 million in the previous year.

During the year, we had sumplus liquidity and used these funds to repay our term finances amounting to Rs.141.667
million and Certificate of Deposits amounting to Bs.145.2 million, which helped us in reducing the financial costs
of the Company. Further, we closely monitored our administrative expenses and have tried to keep these at minimal
by adopting measures of cost cutting.
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Regulatory Changes

During the year, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan amended the NBFC and NE Regulations 2003
related to license renewal and accordingly we have obtained a renewed license for next three years expiring in May
2013.

Future Outlook and Strategy

The economic fundamentals are expected to be sound and promising, indicating potential for growth, God willing,
The Company, therefore, has every hope to look into future with optimism. We will continue to place emphasis on
service quality with focus on quality clients. The strategy of business plan of the Company is focused on ‘better
profitability’ through professional efficiency and best business practices.

It can be judged with the performance of the Company for last many years and this is evidenced that ‘stability of
operation” and ‘sustainability of growth’ are well achieved in supportive economic envoirnment. The Company has
enough potential to face challenges and record excellent results from the beam of economic light, which is
awaited.

Shareholders' Equity

We are fully compliant to the minimum equity requirements. The shareholders strong resolve o exercise all efforts
as before to meet the future requirements.

Credit Rating

Despite downtrend of economic conditions and tough liquidity position in the market, JCR-VIS Credit Rating
Company Limited has maintained our credit rating to A- (Single A minus) for medium to long term and short term
rating as A-2 with stable outlook. The rating indicates a low expectation of credit risk emanating from strong capac-
ity for timely payment of financial commitments,

Related Party Transactions

The Company had adopted comparable uncontrolled price method for accounting treatment of transfer pricing.
Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2010 is annexed to this report.
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Retirement Schemes / Provident Fund

The value of investments of provident fund based on its audited accounts for the year ended June 30, 2010 is
Rs. 4,478,579/-

Information Technology

Computerized environment and efficient utilization of information technology has been the hallmark of your
company’s policy. To keep our system current and compatible to the future requirement, your Company has
dedicated its resources for continuous up-gradation of computer hardware and software, Our present Lease
Management System (the software] is operating on ‘Oracle’ to give a better mileage to cover the entire requirements
of the system’s operation. MIS Software and hardware maintenance have been outsourced to reputable companies
for quality services assurance,

Directors' Election

During the year, election of directors was held as per required schedule. Mr. Shahzad Ali Rashid was elected to
replace Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim. All the directors were approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan vide their letter no. SC/NBFC-1/SLCL/2010. Subsequently, a casual vacancy arose when Mr. Ziad Bashir
resigned due to personal reasons and was replaced with Mr. Shoaib Jawed Savul, approval for which has also been

received from SECP,
Attendance of Board Meetings

Four board meetings were held during the year. Attendance by each director is appended below:

sde. Names of Directors Meetings
Attended

"Mr. Asif Ali Rashid
Mr. Muhammad MNasim Khan

Mr. Shahzad Ali Rashid

Mr. Aamir Ali Rashid
Mr. Ruhail Muhammad

LT - B S I -

Mr. 5. Arshad A. Kazmi

Mr. Shujat Ali Baig 1

Mr. Iskander Sultan Khawaja -
Mr. Ziad Bashir -
Mr. Arshadullah Khan 4

Mr. Shoaib Jawed Savul 1

Corporate Governance
The board of directors reviewed the code of corporate governance and confirms that:

m  Financial Statements present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity.

®  Proper books of account have been maintained,

®  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

®m [nternational Accounting Standards (IAS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial staterments.

®  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

m  There are no significant doubts upon Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

m  There has been no material departure from best practices of corporate governance applicable at June 30, 2010.

m  There has been no trading during the year in the shares of the Company carried out by the directors, CEQ, CFO,
Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children.

Auditors

The auditors Messer KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants retired and offer themselves for
reappointment for the year ending June 30, 2011,

Acknowledgement

The directors are pleased to put on record their appreciation of devoted efforts by the staff for successful operations
of the Company and gratitude to the clients, regulators, credit rating agency, internal and external auditors, bankers,
investors in Certificates of Deposits and shareholders for their faith and trust in the Company. The success of the
Company is owed to them all.

>

Asif Ali Rashid
Chairman
Karachi

Dated : September 06, 2010
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Summary of assets and liabilities Pattern of share holding

As at June 30 As at June 30, 2010
Rs, (000
S, 2010 2009 2008
Share Holdin, I g i g
Authorized Share Capital 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 kR k Number Total Shares Percentage
_ of Share Holders Held (%)
Equity
Paidup Share capital 300,000 300000 300000 300,000 300,000 250,000 From To
Reserve fund 61,862 61,862 61,862 50,946 38,809 30,373
Unappmprial!r:d pl‘ﬂﬁl:" {lCISS-} :43,542] [55,4‘}43 12,330 lg, 541 lﬂ.ﬂﬁ? 12,595 -I _ Iﬂﬂ 1 -] q-l D lmn-g
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments 12 (14,746) (42,199 11,013) {2,089) (5,0100 ’ T
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 54,941 55068 55,194 55,320} 55,447 17,614 101 . 500 g 4,500 0.0150
368,273 346,780 387,187 424,794 411,034 305,572
Liabilities 501 - 1,000 1 625 0.0021
Defered tax 31,070 42,833 49730 49,093 44,438 42,602 .
Long term loans - secured s 33,333 141,667 245,820 287,500 191,667 it e 5 18,1 L0608
Finance lease liabilities 397 1,077 1,739 2,412 4400 il 220,00 - 225,000 1 222,000 0.7400
Certificate of deposits - 107,569 79,537 53,767 56,435 11,775 _
Long term deposils 39,048 131,105 206,448 229,845 214,099 144,755 300,001 T 305,000 1 300,17 1.0006
Cument liahilities 92,703 316,774 503,832 625406 430,233 457,674 i} 4
531,491 979,471 1,370,140 1,631,137 1,444,179 1,154,805 e b ! S ]
Assets 670,001 - 675,000 1 672,600 2.2420
Property & Equipment 81,886 82,690 85,986 88,264 85,714 39,568
Net investment in finance lease 119,243 278,688 541,329 743,642 759,134 559,134 740,001 & 745,000 1 739,783 2.4659
Investrments ﬁﬂ..11ﬂ- 13?,333 15\3.25? ”}3_.133 39.115 53,31? 1 Sf:l‘l m-l _ -I I;F.I’i ﬂﬂf] -] T 564 Hm Ii 2-"5&
Long term deposits 594 556 596 596 - - il £ e o
Dweferred costs - - . - 4,750 10,750 1,565,001 - 1,570,000 1 1,566,150 5.2205
Current assets 269,647 480,164 578,972 695,502 555,466 492,036 _
531,493 979471 1,370,140 1,631,137 1,444.17% 1,154,805 2,015,001 - 2,020,000 1 2,019,750 6.7325
Income i
Lease income 46,777 89,287 128553 139,127 94,757 64,538 21 9500] apaaan ! A8 Ti31a
Markup on depaosits / placement 3,123 3,025 345 2,026 9,361 1,455 2,340,001 - 2,345,000 1 2,342,300 7.8077
Others 25,299 7,515 27,811 38,524 25,276 20,491 _
75,199 99,827 156,759 179,677 129,394 91,484 2,435,001 n 2,460,000 1 2,456,399 8.1880
Expenses -
Administrative expenses 24,326 24,054 23,854 19,641 15,633 14,951 3. 380,001 a3 ] 3,963,220 )
Financial charges 19,781 64473 73,291 B6,BE0 64,366 35,457 5,625,001 = 5,630,000 1 5,628,685 18.7623
Cither Ltapgp;s 7,607 71,124 1,467 - - - o
Amortization of deferred costs . . . 4,750 6,000 6,000 5,850,001 : 5,855,000 1 5,852,350 19.5078
Had debts writteq of 16,653 - - - - - 40 30,000,000 100.00
Proviston for potential lease losses 4,613 - 2 E 2 3
Provision for diminution in AFS investments 3,305 14,592 - - - .
75,685 174,243 98,612 111,251 85,099 56,408
Profit before taxation [4B6) (74,416) 58,147  6B,A26 43,395 35,076

Provision for taxation

e Categories of share holders

Prior {3,688 42 296 (331}

= - i o
= Dreferred (11,763)] | (6,896) 636 4,656 {1,485} 2,753 E
(7,222)  (6,556) 3,568 7,741 1,218 3,862 E
Profit after taxation 6,736 (67,860) 54,579 60,685 42177 31,213 Particulars |
£ Unappropriated profit (55,404) 12,330 15,541 18,867 12,595 7,199 SR Share Holders Share Holding Percentage (%) {
E Transfer from general reserve - - . - - 6,396 o ic
= Transfer from surplus on revaluation 126 126 126 126 ki) 30 Individuals 40 30,000,000 100.00% =
@854 55404 — 7446 79,670 54,80 — #4838
Appropriations : : ? ’ i 40 30,000,000 100.00%
ﬁ Transfer to statutory reserve 1,347 - 10,916 12,137 | 8,435 6,243 |
Dividend - - 51,000 48,000 27,500 26,000
i 1,347 - 61,916 60,137 _ 35935 _ 32,243 Sigma
. Unappropriated profit / {loss) (49,889) _(55404) 12330 19,541 18,867 12,595 pain

Limitnd Lirnited



Category

Pattern of share holding

As at June 30, 2010

Categories of Number of

Category wise

Category wise

Percentage

No Share holders Share held Mo. of Share holders Share held %
1 Individuals 27 22,440,880 74.80
2 Joint stock companies 1 1 -
3 Investment companies - - -
4 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their

spouse and minor children 1 7,258,948 2420

Mr. Asif Ali Rashid 2,456,399

Mrs. Afsara wio Mr. Asif Ali Rashid 432,999

Mr. Shahzad Ali Rashid 2,342,300

Mr. Aamir Ali Rashid 2,019,750

Mr. Ruhail Muhammad 4,500

Mr. Muhammad Masim Khan 500

Mr. Iskander Sultan Khawaja 500

Mr. 5. Arshad A, Kazmi 500

Mr. Shujat Ali Baig 500

Mr. Arshadullah Khan 500

M. Shoaib Jawed 5Savul 500
5 Executives 1 300171 1.00
b NIT /ICP - . -
7 Associated companies, undertaking and related parties - - -
B F'-‘uh_lic sector companies and corporations - - -
a9 Banks, DFls, NBFCs, insurance companies,

modarabas and mutual funds - - -
10 Foreign investors E; d 5
1 Cu-upémtiue societies - -
12 Charitable trusts - - -
13 Others - - -

Total 40 30,000,000

e%"% annualreport2010

Mr. Feroz Ali Rashid
Mr. Misar Ali Rashid
Mrs. Rubina Ariff Al

Totals

Share-holders holding ten percent or more voting interest in the listed company

MNo. of Shares held
5,852,350
5,628,685
3,983,250

15,464,285

Percentage (%)

19.51%
18.76%
13.26%

531.55%

IminE

Limitnd

Notice of 14th annual general meeting

Matice is hereby given that the fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited will be held on

to transact the following business:
Ordinary Business:

To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2009,

Ta receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Accounts together with the Directors and Auditors’ Report for the vear ended June 30, 2010,

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration, The present auditors M KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment as auditors of the Compary for the year ending June 30, 2011.

1.
2,
3.

Any other business with the permission of the chair.

L

g

Ao o A

Arfan Ali Rashid
Comparny Secretary
Karachi:

Motes:

1.

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from
Oclober 18, 2010 to October 25, 2010 (hoth days inclusive).

. A member entitted to attend, speak, and vobe at the mesting s

entitled to appoint another member as proxy to attend, speak,
and vote for him / her.

. An instrument of prosy and the power of attorney or other author-

ity (if any) under which it signed or a notaraly certified copy of
such power of authority, in order 1o be valid, must be deposited at
the registered office of the Compary not less than 48 hours before
the time of the meeting,

. CDC account holders will in addition have to follow the under

mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated
January 26, 2000 of the Securities and Excharge Commission of
Pakistan for aterding the meeting:

a In case of individuals, the account holders or sub acoount

Tuesday, October 26, 2010 at 6:00 pom. at its registered office situated at Sigma House, 8-C, Block &, PECHS, Ofi: Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi,

helders shall authenticate his / her identity by showing his / her
original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original
Passport at the time of attending the meeting. The shareholders
registered on C05 are also requested to bring their Participants”
ID numbers and account numbers in COS.

b. In case of comporate entity, the Board of Directors
resolution / power of attomey with specimen signature of
nominee shall be produced (unbess it has been provided earlier) at
the tirme of meeling.

. Miembers are requested o notify any change in their address

immediatedy to our registrar, Nohle Computer Services (Private)
Limited, Mezzanine Floor, House of Habib  Building
{Sideligsons Tower) 3 Jinnah Co-operative Housing Society,
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Kamchi. Tel: (92-21) 34325482-7
Fase; (92-21) 34325442

~ OL0gHodasjenuue
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Telephone + 92 (21) 3568 5847

Chartered Accountants Fax + 02 (21) 3568 5095
Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2 Internet  www.kpmg.com.pk
Braumont Road

Karachi, 75530 Pakistan

Review report to the members

on Statement of Compliance with Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the statement of Compliance with best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance
prepared by the board of Directors of Sigma leasing Corporation limited to comply with the listing regulations of the
Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited where the company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the code of Corporate Governance s that of the board of directors of the
Company. Qur responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether
the statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's Compliance with the provision of the Code of
Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company to comply
with Code.

As part of the audit of financial staterment we are required to be obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control system sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have not carried out
any special review of the internal control system to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Board's
statement on internal control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal controls.

Further sub-regulation (Xiii) of listing Regulations 35 (previously Regulation No. 37) notified by the Karachi Stock
Exchange (Guarantee} Limited vide circular no. KSE/N-269 dated January 19,2009 requires the Company to place
before the board of Directors for their consideration and approval of related party transaction, distinguishing between
transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transaction and transaction which are
not executed at arm's length price recording proper justification for the using such alternate pricing mechanism.
Further, all such transaction are also required to be separately placed before the audit committee, We are only
required and have ensured compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of related party transaction by the
board of directors and placement of such transaction before the audit committee. We have not carried out any
procedures to determine whether the related party transaction were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflected the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained
in the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2010,

Date: 06 SEP 2010 —
KARACHI KPry Togwy et A

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, Telephone + 92 (21) 3568 5847
Chartered Accountants Fax +92 (21) 3568 5095
Sheikh Sultan Trust Bullding No. 2 Intermet www. kpmg.com.pk
Beaumont Road

Karachi, 75530 Pakistan

Auditors’ report to the members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited (“the Company®) as at 30 June 2010 and the
related profit and loss acoount, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof (hereinafter referred to as the financial statements), for the vear then ended and we state that we
have obtained all the Information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of our audit,

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of intermal control, and prepare and present
the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan, These standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement.
An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by the management, as well as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verifica-
tion, we report that:

a}  in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;
bl in our opinion:

il the balance sheet and profit and [oss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with account-
ing policies consistently applicd except for the changes as described Tn note 3.1 1o the financlal statements with which we
CONEUR;

il the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

il the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the
ohjects of the Company;

¢} in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit and
loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information
reqquired by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state
of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2010 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d)  in our opinion, no Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of 1980).

The financial statements of the Company for the vear ended 30 June 2008 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants
who had expressed an unqualified opinion thereon vide their report dated & October 2009,

Date: 06 SEP 2010 T ¢
KARACHI KPry  Toney et - A

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Muhammad Taufig
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Statement of Compliance with

the Code of Corporate Governance

For the year ended June 30, 2010

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in Regulations No. 37
of listing repulations of Karachi Stock Exchange for the purpose of establishing a framework of pood povernance,
whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner;

1

10

11

12
13

14

The company encourages the representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing
minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes five independent non-executive
directors.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed companies, includ-
ing this company.

All the resident directors of the company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment
of any loan to a banking company, a DFl or an NBFI or, being a member of stock exchange, has been declared
as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

Casual vacancy occurred in the Board during the year was filed in due course of time.

The company has prepared a ‘Statement of Ethics and Business Practices’ which has been signed by all the
directors and employees of the Company.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the date on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appoint-
ment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chiefl Executive Officer
(CED) and other executive directors have been taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his ahsence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose and the Board met at feast once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings,
along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of
the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The: Directors are appropriately apprised and have adequate knowledge of their duties and responsibilities and
therefore arientation course for the directors was not considered necessary.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment, as determined by the CEQ.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by the CEO and CFO before approval of the Board.

The directars, CEC and executive do not hold any interest in the shares of the company other than that disclosed
in the pattern of shareholding,

The company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises three members, of whom all three are non-executive
directors including the Chairman of the Committee.

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held al least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final
results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of references of the committee have been formed
and advised to the committee for compliance.

The related party transactions have been placed before the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors with necessary justification for non arm's length transactions and pricing methods for fransactions that
were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in the arm's length transactions only if such items can be
substantiated.

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to Anjum Asim Shahid Rahman, Chartered Accountants,
who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company and they (or their representatives) are involved in the internal audit functions on a
full time basis.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given satisfactory rating under the
quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and
all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics
as adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
excepl in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

Wi confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L4+

Asif Ali Rashid
Chairman

Dated: September 06, 2010
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Balance sheet

As at June 30, 2010
S
ASSETS Mote
Current Assets
Cash and bank balances 4
Current portion of net investment in finance lease 9
Investments 5
Prepayments and other receivables 6
Taxation - net
Leased assets repossessed upon lermination of lease 7
Total Current Assets
Mon-current Assels
Lang term deposits |
Met investment in finance lease 9
Intangible assets 10
Property and equipment 11
Total Non-current Assels
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Running finance under markup arrangements 12
Current portion of lease key money deposits 15
Current portion of certificate of deposits 16
Current portion of long term loans 17
Current portion of liabilites against assets subject to finance lease 18
Accrued markup on loans and other payables 13
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 14
Total Current Liabilities
Mon-current Liabilities
Lease key money deposits 15
Certificate of deposits 16
Long term loans 17
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 18
Deferred tax liability - net 19
Total Non-current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
MET ASSETS
REPRESEMTELY BY:
Share capital 20
Reserves |
Deficit / Surplus on revaluation of investments 5.2
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment- net of deferred tax 22

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements

W
»”é/ﬂ\c/“’

Chief Executive Officer

2009
.................. [RUPEES) = snmmen e
48,419,016 97,625,866
215,249,574 361,533,217
60,117,667 137,332,559
3,049,151 3,236,631
2,9219.79% 2,390,729
. 15,377,174
329,765,204 617,496,176
598,500 596,300
119,243,449 278,688,498
231,579 352,419
81,653,939 52,337,189
201,727,467 361,974,406
531,492,671 Q79,470,582
. 67,741,040
18,205,126 85,451,847
- 37,630,099
. 108,333,334
677,108 BEY, 718
9,229 7,303,848
3,811,575 9.647 7R4
92,703,038 316,772,690
39,048,221 131,105,457
. 107,569,355
- 33,333,334
396,716 1,076,577
31,070,462 42,833,432
70,515,399 315,918,155
163,218,437 632,690,845
368,274,234 346,779,737
300,000,000 300,000,000
13,320,510 6,457 867
12,369 (14,745 ,845)
313,332,879 291,712,022
54,941,355 55,067,715
368,274,234 346,779,737

il

Director

Profit and loss account

For the vear ended June 30, 2010

oSl
Mg
INCOME
Lease income 23 46,776,876 89,286,799
Markup on depaosits / placements 3,122,924 3,025,361
Other operating income / (loss) 24 25,298,755 (55,501,413}
75,198,555 36,810,747
EXPEMNSES
Administrative and operating expenses 25 24,326,062 24,054,274
Financial charges 26 19,781,292 64,473,763
44,107,354 88,528,037
Operating income / (loss) 31,091,201 (51,717,290)
Provision for diminution in AFS investments 3,304,524 14,591,848
Unrealised loss on revaluation of HFT investments 7,607,407 8,107,472
Provision for patential lease losses 4,612,571 -
Bad debts written off 16,052,793 -
31,577,295 22,699,320
Loss before taxation (486,094) (74,416,610)
Provision for Taxation
Current 27 8,228,830 340.M7
Prior (3,688,237) .
Deferred {11,762,970) (6,896,196)
(7,222,377 (B,556,179)
Net profit / (loss) for the year 6,736,283 (67,860,431)
Earning / (loss) per share - basic & diluted i 0.22 {2.26)
The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements
)/ W
1.9
Chief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended June 30, 2010

®
i
-

Profit / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments - net

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements

w=

Chief Executive Officer

6,736,283  (67,860,431)

14,758,214  (14,745,845)

21,494,497  (82,606,276)
Director

Cash flow statement

For the year ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) ¢ profit before taxation

Adjustmenits for:

Depreciation

Amortization

Financial charges

Loss / (gain] on sale of property and equipment

Met loss on remeasurement of investments held for trading
Pranvision for diminution in value of investments

Provision for potential lease losses

Bad debts written off

Met gain { (loss) on sale of securities

Changes in operating assels / liabilities

Met investment in finance lease

Lease key money deposits

Prepayments and other receivables

Leased assets repossessed upon termination of lease
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Financial charges paid
Taxes paid

Met cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Furchase of investments

Proceeds on disposal of investments

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Deposits

Met cash generated from / used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term loans

Certificate of deposits

Repayment of finance lease obligation

Met cash flows used in financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

(486,094) i74,416,610)
2,601,055 2,581,086
120,840 120,840
19,781,292 64,473,763
518,937 (507 0049
7,607,407 8,107,472
1,304,524 14,591 848
4.612,571 .
16,052,793 -
(17,431,140) 63,016,192
36,682,185 77,967,582
285,063,328 384,721,929
(89,303,957} (74,000,651)
187,480 18,973,811
15,377,174 15,377,174
(5,831,209) 1,222,108
205,492,816 315,450,023
242,175,001 393,417,605
(27,075,911) (64,308,113)
(5,079,661) (3,133,547}
{32,155,572) (67,241, 6600
TI10,019,429 3354750945
(3,554,998) (940,180}
(383,551,782} (430,506,240
482,044,008 398,167,468
1,118,256 2,042,000
(2,200) .
96,053,374 {31,236,952)
(141,666,668) {204,153,333)
(145,199,454} (56,564,553)
(672,491} {559,421}
(287,538,613) [261,277.307)
18,534,190 33,461,686
29,884,826 i2,576,860)
48,419,016 29,684,526
Director

[f . S—
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Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Surplus / (deficity
Share Statutory  Unappropriated  on re-valoation
capital Reserve profit of investments Total
{Rupees)

Balance as at June 30, 2008 300,000,000 61,861,508 12,330,430 - 374,19 938
Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - (67,860,431} - 167, 860,431)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Deficit on revaluation of investments - net - - - {14,745,845) (14,745,845)

300,000,000 61,861,508 (55,530,001} (14, 745,645) 291,585,662
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property
and equipment - net of tax - - 126,360 - 126,360
Balance as at June 30, 2009 300,000,000 61,861,508  (55.403,641) (14,745,845} 291,712,022
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 6,736,253 - 6,736,283
Transferred to statutory reserves - 1,347 257 11,347,257} - -
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Surplus on revaluation of imestments - net - - - 14,758,214 14,758,214

300,000,000 63,208,765 (50,014,615) 12,369 313,206,519
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of propery
and equipment - net of tax - - 126,360 - 126,360
Balance as at June 30, 2010 300,000,000 63,208,765 (49,888,255} 12,369 313,332,879
The annexed notes from 1 1o 36 form an integral part of these financial statements

(M

Chief Executive Officer Director

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended June 30, 2010

1. Legal status and operations

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on April 11, 1996 as a public limited company and received Certificate
of Commencement of Business on January 27, 1997, The Company is principally engaged in the business of leasing
and is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange since 1997, The address of its registered office is Sigma House 8-C,
Block 6, PE.C.H.5., Off Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Basis of preparation

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

25

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board as are notified under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and
Mon-Banking Finance Companies and Motified Entities Regulations, 2008. In case requirements differ, the
provisions of or directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and MNon Banking Finance
Companies and Motified Entities Regulations, 2008 shall prevail.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments are
carried al fair value and leasehold land and building on leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts as stated
in note 3.2 and 3.7 respectively.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency and rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects anly that period, or in period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect of the
following:

- Classification of investments (notes 3.2 & 5);

- Residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment (notes 3.7, 11 & 25);
- Useful lives of intangible assets inotes 3.8, 10.1 & 25); and

- Recognition of taxation and deferred taxation (notes 3.10, 19 and 27).

- Impairement in available for sales investments (note 3.2 and 5)

- Provision for potential lease losses (note 9)

Other accounting developments
Disclosures pertaining to fair values for financial instrument

The Company has applied Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7), issued
in March 2009, that require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk in respect
of financial instruments.
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2.6

The amendments require that fair value measurement disclosures use a threc-level fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in measuring fair values of financial instruments. Specific disclosures
are required when fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 (significant unobservable inputs) in the
fair value hierarchy. The amendments require that any significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy be disclosed separately, distinguishing between transfers into and out of each level. Further-
more, changes in valuation techniques from one period to another, including the reasons therefore, are
required to be disclosed for each class of financial instruments.

Revised disclosures in respect of fair values of financial instruments are included in note 3006,
New accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2070:

Improvements to IFRSs 2009 Effective date

1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 20710
1 January 2010
1 January 2010

1 January 2010

- Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
- Amendments to IFRS 8 Operating Segments

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

- Amendments to I1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

- Amendments to IAS 17 Leases

- Amendments ta IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

- Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

- Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-based

1 January 2010

Payment Transactions 1 January 2010
- Amendment to 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Classification of Rights lssues 1 January 2010
- IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments 1 July 2010

- Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards -

Limited Exermption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters 1 July 2010
Improvements to IFRSs 2010

- Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2010

- Amendments to IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2010

- |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised 2009) These amendments will result in increase
in disclosures in the Fund's financial statements. 1 January 20711
- Amendments ta IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assets, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

- Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRSs

1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011

- Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
- Amendments to IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

- Amendments to IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 January 2011

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

34

ii)

3.2

Changes in accounting policies

The Company has changed its accounting policies due to adoption of the following new and revised Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) during the year. Adoption of these standards did not have any
material effect on the financial performance or position of the Company. However, they have resulted in

additional disclosures. Comparative information has been re-presented so that it is in conformity with the new
! revised standards.

IAS 1 - Presentation of financial statements

The Company has applied "Revised |AS T Presentation of Financial Statements (2007)" which became effective
from period begning after July 1, 2009. This standard required the Company to present in the statement of
changes in equity, all owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented in
statement of comprehensive income.

Comparative information has been re-presented so that it is in conformity with the revised / new standards.
Since the changes in accounting policies only affects presentation of financial statements, there is no impact on
earnings per share.

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments

As of July 1, 2009 the Company determines and presents operating segments based on the information that is
internally provided to the Executive Committee and CEO, which is the Company's chief operating decision
maker. This change in accounting policy is due to the adoption of IFRS 8 Operating Segments. Previously
operating segments were determined and presented in accordance with [AS 14 Segment Reporting. Compara-
tive segment information has been presented in conformity with the transitional requirements of such standard.
Since the change in accounting policy only impacts presentation and disclosure aspects, there is no impact on
earning per share,

Financial instruments
The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
a) Financial instrurments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments 'held for trading'

These include financial instruments acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term
fluctuations in prices or dealers' margins or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-
term profit taking exists.

b Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classi-
fied in any of the other categories. The surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of 'available-for-sale’ securities
is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

¢) Held to maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Company has a positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. These are initially recognised at their
fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

d) Financial labilities

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cost using
the effective yield method.

Recognition
The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contrac-
tual provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From this date, any gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract or the
contract is a derivative contract.
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3.4

Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value (transaction price) plus, in case of a financial asset or
financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs on "financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss' are expensed out immediately. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instru-
ments classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss® and ‘available-for-sale' are measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising, from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' are
recognised in the profit and loss account. Changes in the fair value of financial instruments classified as
‘available-for-sale' are recognised in equity until derecognised or impaired, when the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the profit and loss account.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried al amortised cost using the effective yield
method, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial liabilities, other than those at 'fair value through profit or loss', are measured at amortised cost using
the effective vield method.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. When available, the Company
measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after
initial recognition of asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss event (or events) has impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or the group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments and where observable data indicates that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with default,

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available for sale debt security increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occuring after the impairment loss recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss. However, any
subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available for sale equity security is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in accordance with
International Accounting Standard 39: Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement.

The Company also enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or part of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. If all or substantially all risks and
rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from the balance sheet.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Leased assets repossessed upon termination of leases

The Company occasionally repossesses leased assets in settlement of non-performing lease finance provided to
customers. These are stated at lower of the original cost of the related assel, exposure to the Company and net

realizable value of the asset repossessed. Gains or losses on disposal of such assets are taken to profit and loss
account.

3.5

3.6

3.7

Met investment in finance lease

Leases where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
to the lessees are classified as finance lease. A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the present value
of the lease payments, including any guaranteed residual value, if any.

Specific provision for non-performing leases are made on the basis of the requirements set out in the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

Operating lease

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating |ease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the
carrying amount of leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis of rental income.

Property and equipment
Owned

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any
except leasehold land and building on leasehold land which is stated at revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The revaluation of leasehold land and building on leasehold land is
carried out every five years.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line method whereby the cost/ revalued
amount of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
manth in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the preceding month of disposal.

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment is credit to the surplus on revaluation account. To the extent
of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets the related surplus on revaluation of property
and equipment (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to unappropriated profit,

Subsequent costs

These are included in an asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses are charged to income during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

The pain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determind by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property and equipment, and are recognised net within other
operating income in profit or loss account,

Leased

Asset subject to finance lease are accounted for by recording the asset at the lower of present value of minimum
lease payments under the lease agreements and the fair value of assets acquired. The related obligations under
the lease are accounted for as liabilities. Financial charges are allocated to accounting periods in a manner so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged in a
manner similar to owned assets.

Impairment of non financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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3.8

3.9

3.0

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any,
These are amortized using the straight line method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of
the asset are consumed by the Company.

Revenue recognition
Finance lease income
The Company follows the effective interest method in accounting for the recognition of lease income. Under
this method, the unearned lease income i.e, the excess of aggregate lease rentals and the estimated residual
value over the cost of the leased assets is deferred and taken to income over the term of the lease, so as to
produce a systemmatic return on the net investment in lease. Unrealised lease income pertaining to non-

performing leases is held in suspense account, where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

Front end fee, commitment charges, gain on termination of lease contracts and late payment surcharge are
recognized as income when realized.

Operating lease income
Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight line basis over the terms of relevant lease.
Investment income

Return on investment is recognized at the rates implicit in the respective investment schemes on time propar-
tion hasis,

Dividend income
Dividend income is recorded at the time of closure of share transfer books of the Company declaring the
dividend.

Gain on sale of investments
Capital gain or losses arising on sale of investments are taken to income in the period in which they arise.
Interest income

Interest income on Bank deposits and debt securities is recognised on time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss account
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in
equity.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account available tax credits, rebates and tax losses, or one percent of turnover, whichever is higher. The
charge for the current tax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior
years,

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities used for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the rates that are expected to be applied to the tempo-
rary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date,

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to the profit and loss account except deferred tax, if any, on revaluation of property and
equipment. which is recognised as an adjustment to surplus / deficit on revaluation.

3n

3.2

3.13

3.14

3.15

Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates an approved provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal maonthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and its employees, to the fund at the rate of 533 percent of
basic salary.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet, if the
Company has the enforceable legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposit. For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company's other components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Executive Committee and CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Executive Committee and CEO include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporate assets, administrative expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

The business of the Company can be segmented into two main divisions namely, 'lease’ and ‘investments and
others'. The Company's core business is financial leasing, it is also generating income from investments in
equity and debt equity and collective investment schemes.

o 2009
Note
4. Cash and Bank Balances
Cash with Banks
- on current accounts 4.1 308,885 332,269
- on profit earning current accounts 4.2 28,110,131 97,093,597
- short term deposit 4.3 20,000,000 -
48,419,016 U7 625,866
4.1 This includes deposit of Rs. 64,973/~ (2009: Rs. 67,791/-) with the State Bank of Pakistan.
4.2 The mark-up rales on profit earning current accounts range from 6% to 10% (2009: 6% 1o 12%) per annum.
4.3 The short term deposit is for 7 days with a commercial bank and carries mark-up rate of 11% per annum.
5. Investments
At fair value through profit or loss 51 18,272,570 25,037,200
Awailable for sale 5.2 41,845,007 112,295,359
60,117,667 137,332,559
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5.1 At fair value through proiil or loss

ESl?mmmz;m 2010 2009
i TR NATCK ey Mutia. e Cost Market value  Cost  Market value
Rupees)
Held for trading
These are fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10/~
each unless stated otherwise,
150,000 Azgard Nine Limited 4,008,090 1,674,000 :
10,000 Bank Al Habib Limited 306,100 315,000 -
200,000 - Bank Alfalah Limited 2,269,689 1,892,000 - -
Engro Comporation Limited (formerly Engro
10,000 75,000 Chemical Pakistan Limited) 1,960,000 1,735,800 10437484 9,632,250
100,000 - Hub Power Company Limited 3,318,612 3,196,000 - -
150,000 400,000 ].‘!hangjr Siddiqui & Co. Limited 5,925,000 1,896,000 15,103,002 9276000
200,000 Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited 635,855 548,000
10,000 - Lotte Pakistan PTA Limited 99,000 80,600 - -
100,000 - Metsol Technologies Limited 2,841,351 2,501,000 - -
1,483,000 1,250,000 NIB Bank Limited 8,841,832 4,434,170 7407550 5,937,500
- 5,000 United Bank Limited - - 196,636 191,450
29,795,529 18,272,570 33,144,672 25,037 200
Unrealized loss on revaluation of held-for-trading
investments (11,522,959) - (B,107,472) -
18,272,570 18,272,570 25,037,200 25,037,200
5.2  Awailable for sale
Listed Shares
These are fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10/-
each unless stated otherwise.
- 58,000 Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited - - 9,048,030 7448940
- 30,000 Fauji Fertilizers (Bin Qasim) Limited - - 1132426 530,700
261,000 261,000 First Habib Mocaraba 2325707 1,748700 2,125,707 1,505,970
- 3,653,125 Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited - - 9,892,809 9863438
- 50,000 Mational Bank of Pakistan - - 8,759,251 4,021,800
1,552,500 1,552 500 NIB Bank Limited 7465134 4,641,975 7465134 7374375
- 81,240 Pakistan Oilfield Limited - - 27,112,840 11,852,916
- 27,500 Pakistan Petroleum Limited - - 6,632,950 5,212,350
56,560 67,500 Standard Chartered Leasing Company Limited 501,573 120,473 598,589 135,675
- 313,899 World Call Telecom Limited E - 5,267,002 784748
10,092,414 6,511,148 78,034,738 48,730,912

Mutual Fund

- 376,294  Pakistan Income Fund - - 20,000,000 19,966,133
Listed term finance ceriificate
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited 2nd
4,292 4,292 lssue (Rs. 5,0004- each) (note 5.2.1) 10,730,000 10,730,000 19279664 19279664
20822414 17,241,148 117,314,402 87,976,709
Provision for diminution in value of
available-for-sale investrments (3,808,336) - (14,591,848) -
Unrealized loss on revaluation of
available-for-sale investments (227,070) - (14,745,845) -
17,241,148 17,241,148 87.976,709 87,976,700
Government Sucurities
Defence Saving Certificates (note 5.2.2) snu,mn‘ 500,000 =
PFakistan Investment Bond inote 5.2.3) 24,318,650 || 24,103,949 || 24 318,650 || 24,318,650
24818650 24,603,949 24318650 24,318,650
Linrealized loss on revaluation of
available-for-sale investments (214,701) - - -
24,603,949 24,603,949 24318,650 24378650
41,845,097 41,845,097 112,295,359 112,295,359

5.2,1 The Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited term finance certificates (2nd issue) are for a period of 7 years
with remaining maturity of 6 months. These certificates are subordinated and carry mark-up at base rate (cut
off vield of the latest successful auction of 5 years Pakistan Investment Bonds conducted by State Bank of
Pakistan) plus (.75 percent with a floor of 5 percent and a cap of 10.75 percent per annum.

5.2.2 Defence Saving Certificates (D5Cs) are for a period of 10 years maturing on September 18, 2019 and carry

profit rate of 8.5 percent from the inception of investment to the maturity period.

5.2.3 Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) have a face wvalue of Rs.25,000,000/~ and Rs.100,000/ (2009:
Rs.25,000,000/~ and Rs.100,000/-) issued at a discount and carry profit rate of 12 percent and 9.30 percent
{2009: 12 percnet and 9.30 percent per annum) respectively receivable semi-annually and have a term of 10

years and 5 years maturing on August 30, 2018 and May 19, 2011 respectively.

oS 2009
Prepayments and other receivables _—
Moiter -—---—— {Rupees} —————
Prepayments
- Insurance 317,500 320,699
- Others 934,990 150,607
1,252,490 471,306
Interest accrued on TFCs, PIBs and DSCs 1,548,158 1,201,637
Others receivables
Receivable from a broker against sale of securities ‘ - ‘ 90,000
Others 248 503 1,473,688
248 503 1,563,688
3,049,151 3,236,631
Leased assets repossessed upon termination of lease — held for sale
Equipment - 15,377,174
Long term deposits
Lease deposits 361,300 361,300
Other security deposits 237,200 235,000
598,500 596,300
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9. Net investment in finance lease - Secured 11. Property and equipment

2010 2009 20
Mot later Later than one ot later Later than one Cost / Revaluation Accumulated Depreciation Written
than one ﬂ“mﬁ:elm Total than one yﬁarr_&- less Total ik down
year n YEArS year than five years As at s As at As at : As at valwe as at
. Note  July 01, f‘:r“d"il'“““’ D"F.""S;Lf" Jue 30, Rale julym, Forthe D’W'I ! wnezo,  June 30,
Installments contract receivables 155,442,167 91,427,157 246,869,324 324,582,652 169,872,717 494,455,369 000 o year  Write 2010 " 2009 e Reversa 20 20
Residual value of leased assets 88,332,027 39,048,221 127,380,248 85,887,312 131,452,258 217,339,570 Rupees Rupees
Lease contract receivable 243,774,194 130,475,378 374,249,572 410,469,964 301,324,975 711,794,930 beenstiyacid
Uneamned lease income (18,388,378) H {11,231,929) | [(29,620,307)] [(37.236,497)|[(22,636,477)| [(59,872,974) Equipment
e Chwenied
Mark-up held in suspense 9.1 | (5,523,671) - (5,523,671)| | (11,700,250) : {11,700,250) - (3 SR ) ) P _ _ ) ) ) T
(23,912,049) (11,231,929) (35,143,978) (48,936,747} (22,636,477)  (71,573,224) Building on
s leaschald land 1.1 22,582,409 . - 22,582,409 2 1446557 490,924 - 1,937,421 20,644,488
Provision for lease losses 4,612,571) : 4,612,571) § - - Furniture and fixtures 2644967 26,000 (69,128) 2,601,534 10 2,495,450 42,549 (69,121} 2,468,887 132,952
Met investment in finance lease 215,249,574 119,243,449 334,493,023 361,533,217 278,688,498 640,221,715 Vehicles o 7363884 1,359,000 - 8,722 Rid 10 3,071,875 852,951 - 3,024,626 4,798,058
Computer a ice
The Company has entered into various lease agreements for periods ranging from 3 to 5 years, carrying markup rates ranging equipment _c5241,165 2,169,998 (2,248,805 4,162,358  10-33.3 3,639,070 604,970 (2,151,070) 2,032,370 2,063,388
from 13.50 to 23.01 percent per annum (2009: 10.01 to 23.01 percent per annum). e 08,732,425 3,554,998 (2,317,933) 89,969,490 10,653,407 1,991,394 (2,220,191} 10,424,604 79,544,586
(EHES
Vehicles __3113.000 - 3,113,000 FR37IT 280170 = 1,003,947 2,109,053
91,845,425 3,554,998 (2,317,933) 93,082,490 11,377.178 2,271,564 (2,220,191) 11,428,551 81,653,939

2009

9.1 Mark-up held in suspense On operating lease (Rented to customers)

---------- (Rupees) ————— 3 ! "
o Vehicles 2,799,000 © o (2,799,000) . 1,119,600 139,950 (1,259,550)
Balance at beginning of the year 11,700,250 2,014,941 Office equipment 1,083,100 - (1,083,100 . __ 893,558 189,541 (1,083,099)
: _3Bfa00 00 - 0 38R0l 0 - 2013158 339,491 (3342 649) e e
Income suspended during the year 3,617,930 9,685,309 Rupees 95.727.525 3,554,998 (6,200,033) 93,082,490 13,390,336 3,601,055 (4.562.840) 11,428,551 81,653,939

15,318,180 11,700,250

Suspended income:
- realised during the year (997 811) - g Cost / Revaluation "";;ifﬁm
5, i = ' T
- written off during the year {8,796,608) - P P As al - P e Rt valoe 25 at
L MNate  July 07, Dispesal — June 30, July 01, Disposal — June 30,  June 30,
{9,794, 504) 2008 for the year 3600 W 2006 year 2009 2009
5,523,671 11,700,250 Rupees Rupees
010 2007 s
' 'h] Equipment
10. Intangible assets S S Ovweried
& Nede (Rapese) Leasshold land 111 51,900,000 . . 51,800,000 . : . . . 51,900,000
Cost 1,105,955 1,105,955 il o
e ! L ! "r leasehald land 117 22582 409 - - 22,582,409 2 956,077 490,920 - 1 446,997 21,135,412
Accumulated amaortization 10.1 (874,376} _ (753,536) Furniture and fistures 2,644,967 . - 2,644,967 10 2454540 40,819 - 2,495,459 145,508
231,579 352,419 Wehicles 10,033,884 775000 (34450000 7363684 10 4,193,828 7RA,056 (1,970,008 3,071,875 4,292,009
10.1 Accumulated amortization Comptes and office
equipment 4075985 165,180 = 4,241,165 10-33.3 3,262,779 376,291 - 3,639,070 602,095
Dpening Ralance 753.536 632,696 91,237,245 940,080 (34450000 88732425 10,867,324 1,696,086 (1,910,009 10,653,401 78,079,024
L, o . £ g Leased
Amartization during the year 25 120,840 120,840 Vishicles 1,113,000 . : 3,113,000 449,607 260,170 - 723777 2,389,223
Closing balance 874,376 753,536 04,350,245 040,180 (34450000 91,845,425 1,310,931 1,976,256 (1,010,008) 11,377,178 80,468,247
10.2 Intangible assets comprise computer software cost and are amortized over the useful life of five years, On operating lease (Rented 1o customers)
Viehicles 2,799,000 - - 2,799,000 839,700 279,900 - 1,119,600 1,673,400
Office equipment 1 100 - - 1,083,100 568,628 324,930 - B93,558 189,542
- .?Jﬁiir!_@ - - };Hﬁ?;l@ﬂ_ 1,408,328 604,830 - 3;.“15.1.‘._55 IIES‘:G:E'.’..J_
Rupees 98,232 345 40,180 (34450000 95737 525 12,719,259 2,561,086 (1.910000) 13,390,336 82,337,189
g i
|
11.1 The above balances represent the value of leasehold land and building on leasehold land subsequent to revaluation, ;i
which resulted in surplus of Rs.16.20 million and Rs.2.436 million respectively as on June 30, 2001 and Rs.33.90 |
= million and Rs.7 284 million as on June 30, 2006 respectively over the book values as of said dates. The values of I
E leasehold land and building on leasehold land so revalued are being depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the |2
" assets determined at the date of revaluations. The revaluations were carried out by Surval Engineering Surveyors & |
ﬁ Technical Consultants on June 30, 2001 and Credit and Commerce Consultants (Private) Limited on June 30, 2006. ﬁ
Eiﬁ;ma Sip_'m:
Ir.xing ) lmu"ng

Corparatian Comporation
Limited Lirmited
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Y 2010 2009 | 2010 200 |

Mote [Rupees) Mite {Fupees)
11.2  Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the revalued leasehold land and building would amount to: 13. Accrued mark-up on loans and other payables

Accrued mark-up on:

Leasehold land 1,800,000 1,800,000 | | 4178516
Building on leasehold land 12,071,743 12,350,409 iRt - , TeLg
running finance facilities 9,229 78,207
13,871,743 14,150,409 ki :
11.3 The cost of fully depreciated assets included in the fixed assets is as follows : certificate of deposits - 3,047,125
9,229 7,303,848
Vehicles 107,998 107,998 14. Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Computers and office equipment 1,366,675 2,863,579
Furniture and fixtures 2,340,290 2,227,962 Accrued expenses 830,370 826,528
3,814,963 5,199,539 Advances from customers 2,293,402 8,300,882
— o —— B — Others 687,803 515,374
Disposals of property equipmen 3,811,575 9,642, 784
Mode of Accumulaed  Book Sale  Gain/(loss)  Particulars 15. Lease key money deposits
ot 5 Description disposal Cost depreciation value proceeds  ondisposal  of buyer
{Rupees) Lease key money deposits
. ) - finance leases 15.1 127,253,347 215,941,069
Computer equipment  Insurance Claim 1,247,900 (1,239,729) 8171 377,000 368,829 EFU Gen. - operating leases : 616.235
- | . Insurance Lid., 127,253,347 216,557,304
e eguipment Insurance Claim 192,650 (104,477} 88,173 123,000 34,827 :EFLI Gen. w Maturing within one year (88,205,126) (85,451,847)
: " e TR 39,048,221 131,105,457
Vehicle MNegotiation 2,799,000 (1,259,550) 1,539,450 285,000 (1,254,450} Mr. Aziz Merchant
15.1 These represent sumns received from lessees under lease contracts and are repayable / adjustable at the expiry
Computer equipment  Megotiation 1,083,100 (1,083,099 1 333,256 333,255 Bearing Point of lease period.
(Pwt) Lid,
Computer equipment  Scrap 684,700  (683,313) 1,387 - (1,387) Scrap . .
Office equipment  Scrap 123,555 (123,551} 4 - (4) Scrap 16.  Certificate of deposits
Furniture & Fidure  Scrap B9,128 (69,121} 7 - {7} Scrap Certificate of deposits 16.1 - 145,199,454
2010 6,200,033 (4,562,840) 1,637,193 1,118,256  (518,937) Maturing within one year - 137,630,099
- 107,569,355
2009 3,445,000 (1,910,009 1,534,991 2,042 000 507,009

16.1 During the year the Company paid off all the certificate of deposits to respective certificate holders along

w with the profit for broken period, if any, as per the decision of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Nole e (RUPBES) e 17. Long-term loans - Secured
12. Running finance under mark-up arrangements - secured LN A - 12:300,000
& P 8 et Loan B - 12,500,000
Facility | 12,1 - 28,882,194 Loan C - 25,000,000
Facility Il 12.2 - 12,389,913 Loan D - 25,000,000
Facility Il - 26,468,933 Loan E = 66,666,668
- 57,741,040 - 141,666,668
; ; : Maturing within one year - (108,333,3314)
12.1 This represents running finance facility under mark-up arrangements availed from a commercial bank and carries mark-up 5 i - 33333334
at the average 6 months KIBOR (ask) plus 1.5 percent (2009: 1 percent) per annum to be determined at the end of every ) ==
guarter. The facility is secured by specific charge over leased assets and rental receivables of Rs.100 million (2009: Rs.100 17.1 During the year the Company paid off all the term finances before maturity to respective banks as per the
million), The facility expired on June 30, 2010 and is renewable annually. Facility limit available to the Company is Rs.30 decision of the Board of Directors of the Company.

million (2009: Rs.30 million). s ) .
12.2 This represents running finance facility under mark-up arrangements availed from a commercial bank and carries mark-up 18. Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

at the average 6 months KIBOR (ask) plus 2.5 percent (2009: 2.5 percent} per annum to be determined at the end of every e, m—

guarter. The facility is secured by specific charge over leased assets and rental receivables of Rs.33.334 million (2009:

m' {l0znHodanenuLe

Rs.33.334 million). The facility expired on June 30, 2010 and is renewable annually. Facility limit available to the M}:ﬂ.’m ::i':;:z';:,, F‘ﬁﬂdg«?' Mt.:':,rxm L-‘;::.:;‘;-:r Principal
Company is Rs.12.5 million {2009: Rs.12.5 million). payments  future periods DUSENEINE s ments future periods autstanding
[Rupees}
Mot later than one year 742,478 (65370} 677,108 854,508  (184,770) 669,738
Later than one year and not ,_:;f::
Later than five years 403,995 (7,279) 396,716 1,155,753 {79,176} 1,076,577 Corparatian

Limited

1,146,473 (72,649) 1,073,824 2,010,261 (263,946} 1,746,315
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18.1 This represents obligation in respect of vehicles acquired under finance lease arrangements from leasing
company. Rentals are payable in equal monthly installments. Repairs and insurance cost are to be horne by
lessee. Financing rate ranging to & months KIBOR (ask) plus 3.25 percent (2009: 6 months KIBOR (ask) plus
3.25 percent). Purchase option can be exercise by the lessee by adjusting security deposit at the expiry of

lease period.
2010 2009 |
19. DEfEl‘rE[l tﬂx Iiabiliw " nEI: (T3] - P —— qRupeH.j ..............
This is comprised of following:
Credits arising due to:
- Difference between investment in lease and
tax book value of assets given on lease 25,452,798 47,949,904
- Difference between accounting book value of
fixed assets and tax base 5,255,334 1,355,595
- Difference between accounting book value of
assets taken on lease and related lease liability 362,330 225,018
31,070,462 49530517
Debits arising due to:
- carry forward losses - (3,051,497)
- fax credit - (3,645, 588)

- I6,697,085)
3070462 42,833,432

20. Share capital
20.1 Authorized capital

2010 2009 e : —

(Mumber of shares)

90,000,000 90,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 900,000,000 900,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000 Preterence shares of Rs. 10/~ each 100,000,0:00 100,000,000
100,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000

20.2 lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/
30,000,000 30,000,000  each - for consideration in cash 300,000,000 300,000,000

20.3 5,217,819 (2009: 5,217 ,819) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each are held by the related parties.
21. Reserves

Statulory reserves 211 63,208,765 61,861,508
Accumulated losses (49,888,255) [55,403,641)
13,320,510 6,457 867

21.1 In accordance with the NBFC Regulations, the Company is required to transfer 20 percent of its after tax
profits to statutory reserve until the reserve equals its paid up capital. Thereafter 5 percent of after tax profit is
required to be transferred to reserve.

22. Surplus on revaluation of property and Equipment - net of deferred tax
Movement in the surplus on revaluation of property & equipment account is as follow:
Balance as on July 01, 2009 55,067,715 55,194,075
Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation
charged during the year - net of deferred tax {126,360) (126,360)
34,941,355 55,067,715

23.

24,

25.

Lease income

Income from:

- Finance lease

- Operating lease

Miscellaneous charges against leases
Cancellation charges of lease contracts

Other operating income

Net gain / (loss) on Sale of Securities

Mark-up on:

- Term Finance Certificates

- Pakistan Investment Bonds

- Insurance arrangement

Dividend income

{Loss) / gain on sale of property and equipment
Oithers

Administrative and operating expenses

Salaries and other benefits
Contribution to provident fund
Directors’ fees

Rent, rates and taxes

Security services

Utilities

Postage and periodicals
Printing and stationery
Vehicle running and maintenance
Insurance

Traveling and conveyance
Auditors’ remuneration

Legal and professional charges
Depreciation

Amortization

Entertainment

Advertisement expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Brokerage expenses

Others

25.1 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee - statutory

Fee for half yearly review

Fee for review of compliance with Code of Corporate Governance
Other certifications

Out of pocket expenses

T — — (Rupeet] e
43 171,457 84,094,716
184117 1,199,676
3,294 854 3,499,721
126,448 492,686
46,776,876 89,286,799
17,431,140  (63,016,192)
1,434,661 2,142,516
3,040,664 288,753
139,069 517,909
2,366,882 3400170
(518,937) 507,009
1,405,276 658,422
25,298,755 (55,501,413)
10,106,663 11,358,368
498,805 566,626
30,000 40,000
581,497 221,270
228,000 209,539
1,009,293 862,901
46,114 52,615
362,054 426,898
1,535,822 1,724,448
B27,099 857,282
23,822 3,390
25.1 523,500 304,750
3,089,798 3,188,797
11 2,601,055 2,581,086
10.1 120,840 120,840
62,414 42,467
152,438 78,046
1,131,414 249,103
517,183 476,313
4
24,326,062 24,054,274
300,000 275,000
105,000 100,000
50,000 50,000
20,000 35,000
48,500 44,750
523,500 504,750

m.. ST pudiERE
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26.

27.

28.

Finance charges Nate s i
Financial charges on lease financing 177,122 299,594
Mark-up on:
Certificate of deposits [12,435,9 27 055,945
Loans and borrowings:
* |ong-term loans 7,055,761 41,366,511
* running finance under mark-up arrangements 48,946 703,067
19,540,696 64,125,523
Arrangement charges 25,200 15,000
Bank charges 38,274 33,646
19,781,292 64,473,763
Taxation
- current 8,228,830 340,017
- prior (3,688,237) -
- deferred (11,762,970) (6,896,196)

(7,222,377)  16,556,179)

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense:

Accounting prufit {486,094) (74,416,610)
Tax @ 35% (170,133) (26,045,814)
Tax effect of:

- income / (loss) exempt from tax 6,100,899) 19,055,667

- income taxed at reduced rates {591,721) (850,043)
- tax effect of unrealised |oss 2,662,592 2,837,615
- tax effect of impairment on AFS 1,156,583 5,107,147
- prior year adjustment / reversal of turnover tax (3,688,237} (6,439,578)
- other (490,562) {(221,173)

(7,222,377} (6,556,179}

27.1 Current status of tax assessments

In 2008, an appeal has been filed with Income Tax Appellant Tribunal against the assessment order of
tax year 2004, In this assessment order, the tax officer has raised various matters which include; disallow-
ance of initial allowance, taxability of early lerminated leases and taxability of capital gain. The manage-
ment and their lax consultant are confident that the decision in the aforementioned matters will be
received in their favour.

Remuneration of chief executive officer, directors and executives

Chief executive officer Directors Executives
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 20049
oo (RUPEES) oo oo (RUPEES) —mome —eeeee (RUPEES) -
Managerial remuneration 1,493,400 1,493,400 BB0,000 1,080,000 1,940,100 1,920,000
Housing and utilities 746,940 746,940 315,000 540,000 969,900 960,000
Bonus - - - - - -
Provident fund 124,450 124,450 52,500 90,000 161,674 180,000
Club subscription 12,000 12,000 7,000 12,000 12,000 12,000
2,376,790 2376790 1,254,500 1,722,000 3,083,674 3,052,000
1 1 1 ] 1 2 2

28.1 The Chief Executive Officer and Executive are entitled to free use of Company maintained vehicles.
28.2 Aggregate amount charge in the financial statement with respect to directors’ fee for the year was Rs.0.03

million (2009: Rs.0.04 million).

29,

30.

Capital management

The Company objective for managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a poing concern in order
to continue providing returns to is shareholders.

Capital equity requirements applicable to the Company are set and regulated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP}. These requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient solvency margins.
The Company manages its capital requirement by assessing its capital structure against the required capital
level on a regular hasis. Securities and E)u:hange Commission of Fakistan vide SRO 764112009 extended the
minimum equity requirement for another two years. The revised minimum equity requirement is as under:

Year ending Rs. in million

June 30, 2010 200

June 30, 2011 350

June 30, 2012 500

June 30, 2013 700
The Company’s equity comprises of following:
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 300,000,000 300,000,000
Statutory reserve 63,208,765 61,861,508
Revenue reserve
Unappropriated (loss) / profit (49,888,255)| | (55,403,641)
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments {12,369)] |(14,745,845)

(49,875.886) (70,149 4860)
313,332,879 291,712,022

The Company manages the capital structure and made adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions, risk of the recovery of the leased rentals, and the regulatory requirements. In order to maintain the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend or issue new shares,

Financial risk management

Introduction and overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:
- credit risk

- liquidity risk

- market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing it.

30.1 Risk management framework

The Board of Directars has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The committee
reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Company’s activities. The Company, ﬂTFGléFh its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

30.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Company, resulting in a financial loss to the Company
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, cash and cash equivalents and
investment securities,

M{ENUUE
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30.2.7  Management of Credit risk

The Company atternpts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with
specific counter parties, and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties,

30.2.2 Exposure to Credit risk

The Company's maximum credit risk exposure (before collateral and other credit enhancements) at
the Balance Sheet date is represented by the respective carrying amounts of the financial assets,
Carrying amount of these financial assets is as follows:

2010 2000 |

e — {Rupees) ———————
Bank balances 48419016 97,625,866
Other receivables 1,796,661 2,765,325
Investment 10,730,000 19,279,664
Met investment in finance leases { net of security deposits held) 207,112,775 422,882,145
Long term deposits 598,500 596,300

268,656,952 543,149,300

30.2.3 Credit ratings and Collaterals held

Belowmentioned ratings are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA and JCR-VIS (as of
June 30, 2010),

30.2.3.1 Banks

The analysis below summarizes the credit guality of the Company's bank balances as at June 30, 2010
and June 30, 2009:

AAA 130,040 208,44
Ads 65,338 151,698
Ad- 27,876,202 56,036,064
A 20,318,863 41,143,268
A 28,553 86,395

30.2.3.2 Lease receivables

Out of total lease receivable amounting to Rs.334.493 million (2009: Rs.640.222 million),
Rs.332.786 million (2009: Rs.632.505 million) is due from non-rated parties.

30.2.3.3 TFC by rating category

A Rupees 10,730,000 19,279,664

30.2.3.4 Description of Collateral held

The Company's leases are secured against assets leased out, personal puarantee of lessees and post
dated cheques. In a few leases additional collateral is also obtained in the form of mortgaged

property.

30.2.4 Aging Analysis* of Net Investment in Finance Lease

i
in mount on Amount an Impairment
mnf h‘w‘l’ll:h no . which reg:;ned
impairmeni inpairment
recognised recognised
(Rupees)
0 days I04.255, 168 304,255,168 - -
1-89 days 4118513 4,118,513 : -
90 days-1 yoar 21,506,771 21,506,771 - -
1 year- 2 years 1,248,178 - 1,248,178 1,248,178
2 years- 3 yoars 3,364,393 - 3,364,353 3,364,353
Maore than 3 years : - . -
Tistal 334,493,023 329,080,452 4,612,571 4,612,571
2009
Carryin Amount on Amount on Impairment
Am":un% “which no - which re"?:jngnised'
impairment irnpatirment
recognised recagnised
[Rupees)
0 days 500,244,626 500,244,616 -
1-89 days 58,185,842 58,165,842 -
90 days-1 year 54,697,977 54,697,977 . .
1 year- 2 years 27,113,270 27113270 - -
2 years- 3 years - - -
Maore than 3 years - = -
Tostal 640,221,715 640,221,715 -

*Based on overdue installments.

30.2.5 Conncentration of credil risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect
groups of counterparties whaose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's
total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered into with diverse creditworthy counterparties thereby mitigating any signifi-
cant concentration of credit risk.

Details of the industrial sectar analysis of lease portfolio are as follows:

2010 B 2009 |

Rupees % Rupees %

Textile and made ups 65,438,774 19.56 77,694,357 12.14
Pharmaceuticals - - 9,102,765 1.42
Healthcare and hospitals 19,978,393 5.97 28,244,996 4.41
Services 19,846,750 5.93 44,042,344 6.688
Textile spinning - - 5,367,272 0.84
Synthetic 1,684,790 0.50 28,301,593 4.42
Banking and financial institutions 11,895,904 3.56 21,931,724 3.43
Textile weaving 27,173,573 8.12 58,125,128 9.08 ]
Construction 604,867 0.18 914,266 0.14 iﬁ
Transportation 9,758,599 2.92 27,234,152 4.25 =
Trading services 7,281,047 2.18 22,029,315 344 'g
Food 55,256,971 16.52 49,590,949 775 |
Communication and IT 13,235,416 3.96 21,782,470 3.40 1=
Cement 5,183,949 1.55 40,811,051 6.37 :Q
Sugar and allied 000,498 0.27 2,334,152 0.36
Chemicals 19,484,612 5.83 28,651,123 4.48
Others 76,768,880 22.95 174,064,058 27.19 "

334,493,023 100.00 640,221,715 100.00 lmﬁ
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30.3 Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that such obligations
will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Company.

30.3.1 Management of liquidity risk

To guard against the risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed
with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents and readily
marketable securities. The maturity profile is monitored to ensure adequate liquidity is main-
tained.

30.3.2 Maturity analysis for financial assets & liabilities
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

Contractual to 3 Over Over
Amount exch flows ﬁnw gn"{q“}el.llru fn‘E!;:;rs Ower 5 years
{Rupees)

As at 30 June 2010
Assels
Cash and bank balances 48,413,016 48,461,207 48,461,207 - . -
Ivestments 60,117,667  B7,992,074 19313264 20574861 12,750,000 35,353,949
Oither receivable 3,049,151 3,049,151 1,796,661 460,000 792,490 .
Net investment in finance lease 334,493,023 169,660,389 115,813,055 123,166,913 130,660,421 .
Long term depaosits 598,500 398,500 - - 598,500 -

A46, 677,357  BUO.761,321 185,404,187 144,301,774 144,801,411 35,353,949
Liahilities
Accrued markup on loans
and other payables 9,279 9,229 9,279 = = =
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,811,575 3,811,575 3,811,575 - . -
Lease key money deposits 127.253,347 127,253,347 49,994,605 38210,521 39,048,221 :
Liahilities against assets
subject to finance lease 1,073 824 1,146,780 211,571 531,644 403,565 -

132,147,975 132,220,931 54026980 38,742,165 39,451,786 -

As at 30 June 2009

Assels

Bank balances 97,625,806 97,625,866 97,625,866 - . -

Investments 137,332,559 170,347,426 95004711 12,131,290 24,642,775 38,568,650

Orther receivables 3,236,631 3,236,631 3,236,631 - . .

Repossessed assets 15,377,174 15,377,174 15,377,174 - . .

Met investment in finance lease 640,221,715 717,191,600 161,986,489 259403830 295,801,281

Long term deposits 596,300 596,300 - - 596,300 -
894,390,245 1,004,374,997 373,230.871 271,535,120 321,040,356 38,568,650

Liahilities

Running finance under

markup arrangements 67,741,040 67,741,040 67,741,040 -

Accrued markup on loans

and other payables 7,303,848 7,303,848 6,427,149 876,699

Acerued expenses and other llabilities 9,642,784 4,642,784 9,642, 784 Z B -

Lease key money deposits 216,557,304 216,557,304 22,044,310 63,407,537 131,105,457 .

Certificate of deposits 145,199,454 203,382,983 20,785,208 21,327,315 161,270,370 -

Long term loans 141,066,668 163,545,419 47057083 780816068 3,406,668 .

Liabilities against assets

subject to finance lease 1,746,315 1,996,502 213,627 633,340 1,149,535

580,857,413 670,169,880 173,911,291 164,326,559 331,832,030 .

30.4 Markel risks

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign
exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligorsfissuer's credit standing} will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return on risk,

30.4.1 Management of market risks

The Company manages the market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by
following internal risk management policies and regulations laid down by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

The Company is exposed to interest rate and price risk only.
30.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is mainly exposed to mark-
up / interest rate risk on its net investment in finance lease, running finance on mark-up arrange-
ments, certificates of deposits and long term loans with floating interest rates,

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balance between floating interest rate
financial assets and liabilities. Currently financial liabilities represent 0.4% (2009: 45%) of finan-
cial asset with floating interest rates,

At the reparting date, the interest rate profile of Company's interest-bearing financial instruments

is as follows:
june 30 June 30
2010 2009
{Rupess}

Fixed rate instrumenls

Financial assets 134,999,808 246,249,245
Financial liahilities - 99,266,480
Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 282,937,295 574,590,647

Financial liabilities
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Company holds KIBOR based interest bearing investments in finance leases, Pakistan Investment Bonds and
Pakistan Income Fund exposing the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

1,073,824 257,086,997

For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments, a hypathetical change of 100 basis points in interest
rates during the year would have decreased / increased profit and equity for the year by the amounts shown below,
It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument containing interest
rate risk. Actual results migﬁ differ from those reflected in the details 5peciﬁe§cbelmv. The analysis assumes that all
other variables remain constant.

Profit or loss befor tax100 bp Equity 100 bp

Increase (Decrease) Increase {Decrease)
Tt {Rupees) |Rarprees)
As at June 30 2070
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate instruments 2,818,635 (2,818,635) 1,832,113  (1,832,113)
As al June 30 2009

Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate instruments 3,175,097 (3.175,097) 2,063,813 (2,063,813}
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The information about Company's exposures to interest rate risk based on contractual repricing or maturity dates

whichever is earlier is as follows:

Exposed to interest rate risk

Over Mot exposed
Effective rale of U 1 h
mark-up / return %/ oun! s :;';“::‘: tusr::;s Over 5 years “:i';":;“
(Rupees)
As at June 30 2010
Bank balances 6.00-10.00 48419016 48,110,137 - - . 308,885
Investments 9.30-1200 60,117,667 34,833,949 = : 25,283,718
Other receivables 3,049,151 - - . - 3,049,151
MNet investment in
finance lease 13.50-23.01 334,493,023 334,493,023 E : i 5
Long term deposits 598,500 - - - - 598,500
446,677,357 417,437,103 - - - 29,240,254
Financial Liabilities
Accrued markup on loans
and other payables 9,229 - - - - 9,229
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 3,811,575 . . " . 1,811,575
Lease key money deposits 127,253,347 - - - - 127,253,347
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 15.49 1,073,824 1,073,624 » . - -
732,147,975 1,073,823 - - - 131,074,151
On balance sheet gap 314,579,382 416,363,279 . " = (101,833,897)
Exposed to interest rate risk
Owver Mot exposed
Effective rate of L 1 year = 3
mark-up / return % Amount 3 m,::ﬂ'ls i’”:::::': to 5?":,\53[5. Qhver.5 years m‘i’iﬂ
{Rupees)
As at June 30 2009
Financial Assets
Bank halances 6.00 - 12.00 97,625,866 97,093,597 = - - 532,269
Imvestments 9.30-12.00 137,332,559 63,564,447 . . 73,768,112
Prepayments aned
ather receivables 3,236,631 - - - - 3,236,631
Repossessed assels 15,377,174 15,377,174
Met investment in
finance lease 10.01 -23.01 640,221,715 640,221,715 - - - -
Long term deposits 596,300 - - - 596,300
8§94 360,745 BOD,E79,759 x z e 93,510,486
Financial Liabilities 90% 0% 0%
Running finance under
markup arangements 15.02-18.18 67,741,040 67, 741,040 - - - -
Accrued markup on loans
and other payables 7,303,848 & 5 - - 7,303,848
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 9,642,784 9,642,784
Lease key money deposits 216,557,304 E % 2 - 216,557,304
Certificate of deposits 12.25-17.07 145,199,454 45,932,974 - - - 949,266,480
Long term loans 12.77-15.70 141,666,068 141,666,668 . . -
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 17.00 1,746,315 1,746,315 - - - -
589,857,413 257,086,997 . . 332,770,416
On balance sheet gap 304,532,832 543,792,762 = = - (239,259.930)

Fair value through profit or loss
Available for sale

June 30 2010
June 30 2009

30.5 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk)
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market.

The Company’s listed securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about the
future value of investment securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification
and placing limits to individual and total equity instruments in line with the NBFCs Regulations. Repaort
on the equity portfolio are submitted to investment committee on weekly basis for ﬁ'lEi]’ review and
approval.

Presently, the Company holds equity instruments classified as 'available for sale' and ‘at fair value
through profit or loss' that expose the Company to equity risk. The table below summeries company's
market risk as of June 30, 2010 & 2009. It shows the effect of a 10% increase & 10% decrease in market
prices of equity investments as on those dates on company’s profit & equity.

At the reporting date, the investment profile of Company is classified as follows:

Carrying Amount

June 30 June 30
2010 2009
(Rupees)

Investments

18,272,570 25,037,200
6,511,148 48,730,912

Increase {Decrease) Increase {Decrease)
e {Rutpees) {Rupees) ——rreemmems
1,827,257 (1,827,257) 2478,372 (2,478,372)
2,503,720 (2,503,720) 7,376,811 (7,376,811)

30.6 Fair value of financial instruments

The Company’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in note 3.2,

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data {i.e. unobservable inputs),

Fair value of the financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations,

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:
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31,

32,

33.

Investments

Lease and others Total
............... [RUPEES) wrermmrwmmeas

Segment analysis for the year ended June 30, 2009
Segment revenues 89,286,799 (52,476,052) 36,810,747
Segment results 89,286,799 (75,651,687} 13,635,112
Unallocated expenses (23,577,959)
Results from operating activities (9,942 847)
Finance costs (64,473,763)
Provision for taxation 6,556,179
Profit / (loss) for the period (67,860,431)
Other Information
Segment assets 661,226,249 318,244,333 979,470,582
Total assets BB1,226,249 318,244,333 070,470,582
Segment Liabilities 264,507,208 368,183,637 632,690,845
Total liabilities 264,507,208 368,183,637 632,690,845

34. Transactions with related parties

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
[Rupees)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity securities 18,272,570 - - 18,272,570
Debt securities - 35,333,949 - 35333949

18,272,570 35,333,949 - 53,606,519
Available for sales
Equity securities 6,511,148 - - 6,511,148
Debt securities - - . -

6,511,148 = - 6,511,148
(Rupees)

Earning / (loss) per share - basic and diluted
Net profit / {loss) for the year attributable to the ordinary shareholders' 6,736,283 (A7 860,431]

Weighted average number of ordinary share outstanding during the vear 30,000,000 30,000,000

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted 0.22 {2.26)

31.1 Basic earning per share has no dilution effect.

The related parties comprise entities over which the directors are able to exercise significant influence,
entities with common directors, major shareholders, directors, key management employees, close relatives as
defined in rule 2 (xi} of NBFC Rules, 2003 and employees fund. The Company has a policy whereby all
transactions with related parties, are entered into at commercial terms, other then remuneration to executives
which are under the terms of employment.

2009

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and bank balances

Running finance under markup arrangements

Segment Reporting

Sepment revenues

Segment results

Unallocated expenses

Results from operating activities
Finance costs

Provision for taxation

Profit / (loss) for the period

Other Information
Sepment assels
Total assets

Segment Liabilities
Total liabilities

48419016 97,625,866

(67,741,040

48,419,006 29,884 826

Investmenls
Lease and others Taotal

{Rirpees) e
46,776,876 28,421,679 _75,198,555
26,111,512 16,992 565 43,104,077
(23,808,879)
19,295,198
(19,781,292)
7,222,377
6,736,283
340,471,970 191,020,701 531,492,671
340,471,970 191,020,701 531,492,671
152,706,145 10,512,292 163,218,437
152,706,145 10,512,292 163,218,437

Fund received /renewed under certificate of depaosits

Beginning of the year 40,636,500 22,036,500

Receipts during the year 350,000 21,100,000

Repayment during the year {40,986,500) (2,500,000)

At the year end - 40,636,500
Financial charges paid on certificate of deposits 4,693,367

Meeting fee paid / payable to directors 30,000 40,000

Contribution to provident fund - Directors 176,952 214,452

Contribution to provident fund - Employees 321,853 352,174

Investments

Opening balance 19,485,514 14,076,062

Additions 64,893,349 80,900,067

Disposals {82,418,863) (75.490,615)

Closing balance 1,960,000 19,485,514

Dividend received 166,000 280,000

Capital gain 3,104,390 7,701,996
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35.

36.

Other related parties
Investment in finance lease

Almurtaza T :
Garment Alrashid Micro- i Mr. Imran Ali
Ci Hosiery Mills Total

Yochine  Gwild.  Gwiud b

b b Ltd.
For the year ended June 30, 2010 {Rupees)
Wit investment in finance lease
Beginning of the year 6,622,515 1,617,768 6,958,672 566,393 15,765,348
Disbursement during the year - - 19,300,000 - 19,300,000
Maturities during the year (6,016,115) {F20,155) (2,527,749} (168,783} (9,432,802)
At the year end 606,400 BY97 613 23,730,923 397,610 25,632,546
Lease income 129,043 158,065 913,389 58,597 1,259,099
Lease key money deposits
Beginning of the year 5,410,000 167 450 3,081,100 120,400 B.778,950
Received during the year - - 1,930,000 - 1,930,000
Maturities during the year (5,400,000 A {275,200} (65,0000 (5,740,200)
Al the year end 10,000 167 450 4,735,900 55400 4,968,750
For the year ended June 30, 2009
Met investment in finance lease
Beginning of the year 7,045352 2,244,309 7,471,350 321,916 17,082,927
Disbursement during the year - - 1,799,000 554,000 2,353,000
Maturities during the year (422,837 (626,541) (2,311,678)  (309,523) (3,670,579
Al the year end 6,622,515 1,617,768 6,958,672 566,393 15,765,348
Lease income 205,348 251,679 823,435 72,857 1,353,319
Lease key money deposils
Beginning of the year 5,470,000 167 450 2,951,600 65,000 8,594,050
Received during the year - - 179,900 55,400 235,300
Maturities during the year - - (50,400} - (50,4000
At the year end 5,470,000 167,450 3,081,100 120,400 8,778,950
Corresponding figures
The following corresponding figure has been reclassified for the purpose of better classification and presen-
tation:

Component HHIa:mﬁﬂhnn Reclassification to m::unt nt

e ot T e
Unrealized loss on revaluation Other Charges Unrealized loss on revaluation 8,107,472
of HFT investments of HFT investments
Met loss on sale of securities Other Charges Other operating {63,016,192)

Date of Authorization

income / loss

These financial statements were authorized for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on

September 06 2010,

(o

Chief Executive Officer

Director



Form of proxy

I/ We

of (full address) being a
Member(s) of Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited holding ordinary shares hereby
appoint of or failing him / her

of as my /our proxy in my / our absence

to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Founteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held

on and to every adjournment thereof,
As witness |/ we set my / our hand / seal this day of 2010,
Signed by the said

in presence of

Signature on
Five Rupees
Revenue

Starmp

The signature shoulkd agree with
the specimen regisiered with the
Company

Important Notes:

1. This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, Sigma Leasing
Corporation Limited, Sigma House, 8-C, Block 6, PECHS, off Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the
time of holding the meeting.

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are deposited by a member with the
Company, all such instrument of proxy shall be rendered invalid.



